
 

 

AGENDA 

Grand Haven Charter Township Zoning Board of Appeals 

Tuesday, July 28, 2015 – 7:00pm 
 

 

I. Call To Order 

 

II. Roll Call 

 

III. Approval of the June 23, 2015 ZBA Meeting Minutes 

 

IV. New Business 

A. ZBA Variance Application No. 15-05 – Job 

 

V. Reports 

 

VI. Extended Public Comments/Questions on Non-Agenda Items Only (Limited To Four 

(4) Minutes Please).  

 

VII. Adjournment 

 

 

 



 1 

MEETING MINUTES 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

TUESDAY, JUNE 23, 2015 – 7:00 P.M. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

The regular meeting of the Grand Haven Charter Township Zoning Board of Appeals was 

called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Robertson.  

 

The Chair explained both the purpose and procedures of the ZBA.  

 

II. ROLL CALL 

Board of Appeals members present: Robertson, Loftis, Behm, Voss, and Slater 

Board of Appeals members absent: Rycenga (alternate) 

 

Also present: Planning & Zoning Official Fedewa 

 

Without objection, Fedewa was instructed to record the minutes for the meeting. 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Without objection, the minutes of the May 27, 2015 meeting were approved.   

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. ZBA Case #15-04 – Dimensional Variance – Rust  

 

Party Requesting Variance:  Dale Rust 

Address:    1939 Koehling Rd, Northbrook, IL 60062 

Parcel Number:   70-03-32-331-017 

Location:    18165 Shore Acres Road 

   

Dale Rust is seeking a rear yard setback dimensional variance of 30 feet to 

construct a series of stairways and landings to gain access to the dwelling. Section 

21.02 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50 foot rear yard setback in the R-1 

Single Family Residential Zoning District. Due to the installation of the septic 

system and retaining walls (see P14ZBA0005) the existing stairways had to be 

removed. The location of the drain field, and the ability of the retaining walls to 

support the weight of the proposed stairways and landings have dictated their 

location, which has resulted in the request for a variance.  

 

Fedewa provided an overview of the application, and staff review, through a memorandum 

dated June 18
th

.  



 2 

The fact-finding portion of the Case was discussed by the ZBA members, which focused on: 

 Familiar with the circumstances on the Rust parcel due to the 2014 ZBA application. 

 Who has ownership of the “walkway” depicted on the survey of the platted 

subdivision. Furthermore, who has access to use the “walkway.” Questioned if this 

location could be used to gain access to the dwelling. 

 Inquired if a DEQ permit is needed.  

o Staff informed the Board that Rust had contacted the DEQ, and was told as 

long as the poles for the stairway are dug by hand then a permit is not needed. 

 

Following the initial discussions the Chair invited the applicant to speak: 

 

Dale Rust – 18165 Shore Acres Road: 

 The “walkway” is part of the platted subdivision, and not located on his parcel. Its 

location is very steep and is not the traditional location that has been used to gain 

entry to the dwelling. 

 Concerned for the safety of family and friends because gaining access to the dwelling 

is challenging. 

 

The Board discussed the four standards and noted the following: 

 

Standard No. 1 – Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances: 

 Exceptional topography. 

 Extraordinary circumstance of the drain field and retaining wall locations, and their 

ability to support the weight of the stairway and landings. 

 

Ayes: Robertson, Loftis, Behm, Voss, Slater 

Nays: None 

 

Standard No. 2 – Substantial property right: 

 Gaining safe access to the dwelling is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment 

of the property. Particularly given the previous activity (drain field and retaining 

walls) that created this situation. 

 

Ayes: Robertson, Loftis, Behm, Voss, Slater 

Nays: None 

 

Standard No. 3 – Will not be a substantial detriment to adjacent parcels, or material impact 

on the intent and purpose of the Ordinance: 



 3 

 The safety of persons attempting to gain access to the dwelling is a primary concern 

for the Board. 

 The Board considered the two items of correspondence received from neighboring 

property owners. The objection cited decreased property values and visibility. The 

Board determined the complainant did not include a specific allegation as to how the 

property value would decrease. Furthermore, the Board cannot consider the decrease 

in visibility because the height of the stairways and landings do not violate the 

standards of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 The stairways and landings are wholly contained within the parcel. It only contacts 

the ground at the final landing. Approval of the requested variance would not create a 

protrusion onto neighboring parcels. 

 There does not appear to be any concern from the DEQ regarding erosion of the 

Critical Dune Area. 

 

Ayes: Robertson, Loftis, Behm, Voss, Slater 

Nays: None 

 

Standard No. 4 – Request is not of such a recurrent nature as to make reasonably practical 

the formulation of a general regulation: 

 The Shore Acres development is unique unto itself, and coupled with the unique 

situation on the Rust parcel (septic system and retaining walls causing access to the 

dwelling to be removed) there is no concern this situation will reoccur and make 

reasonable the formulation of a general regulation. 

 

Ayes: Robertson, Loftis, Behm, Voss, Slater 

Nays: None 

 

Motion by Slater, supported by Behm, to approve a rear yard setback 

dimensional variance of 30 feet from Section 21.02 of the Grand Haven Charter 

Township Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a series of stairways and 

landings to gain access to the dwelling located at 18165 Shore Acres Road (Parcel 

No. 70-03-32-331-017). Approval of this variance is based upon the Board’s 

findings that all four standards have been affirmatively met. Which motion 

carried, as indicated by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes: Robertson, Loftis, Behm, Voss, Slater 

Nays: None 

Absent: Rycenga (alternate) 

 

V. REPORTS – None  

 



 4 

VI. EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENTS – None  

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

Without objection, the meeting was adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Stacey Fedewa 

Acting Recording Secretary 



1 | P a g e  

 

 

Location Map 

Community Development Memo 
 

 DATE:  July 24, 2015 

 

 TO:  Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

 FROM: Stacey Fedewa, Planning & Zoning Official 

 

RE:  0 Wilderness Trail – Dimensional Variance Application No. 15-05 

 

 

PARCEL INFORMATION 

Owner/Applicant John Job and Mary Ellen Mika 

Property Address Vacant Wilderness Trail 

Parcel Number 70-07-08-400-032 

Lot Size 1.2 Acres 

Lot Type 

Waterfront – Lake Michigan 

Odd Shape 

Critical Dunes 

Elevation Change 90 feet (590’ – 680’) 

Zoning R-1 Single Family Residential 

Required Setbacks 

Front – 50 feet 

Rear – 50 feet 

Side – 15 feet minimum,  

            Total 35 feet 

Requested Setback: 

Elevated Walkway 

Side 1 – 10 foot variance 

Side 2 – 15 foot variance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Critical Dune Map 

Aerial GIS with Contours 



2 | P a g e  

 

 

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION 

 

The overall construction project proposed by the applicants: 

 

 Demolition of the existing garage (legally nonconforming—no principal dwelling). 

 Construct a new 3,727 square foot single family dwelling (unfinished basement, 2 stories, 

enclosed porch, and 

basement-level garage). 

 12’ x 37’ deck attached to 

west wall of dwelling. 

 420 feet of elevated 

walkway to gain beach 

access. 

 Install retaining walls 

near the front of the 

dwelling. 

 Install septic system and 

private water well. 

 

As of now, the applicants 

possess the following permits: 

 DEQ Permit. 

o The “playhouse” has been removed from the plans because the accessory building was 

located within the front yard. 

 Sewage Disposal System 

 Private Water Well 

 Vegetation Removal Assurance in Designated Critical Dune Areas 

 Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Agency 

 

ZBA APPLICATION 

 

The applicants submitted for a building permit in June 2015, the zoning compliance review identified a 

violation of Sections 20.20.6 (Access Through Yards), and 21.02 (Schedule Limiting Height, Bulk, 

Density, and Area by Zoning District). 

 

The applicants propose a 420 foot long elevated walkway from the main dwelling to the waterfront. 

The elevation change between these two locations is approximately 70 feet. The parcel is located 

within the Critical Dune area, so a footpath is not permitted because of the erosion damage it 

will cause to the dune and native vegetation.  



3 | P a g e  

 

 

The proposed elevated walkway is 5 feet in width, and traverses the narrow (15 foot wide) front yard. 

This is in violation of Section 20.20.6, 

which reads in part, “…access drives may 

be placed in the required front or side yards 

so as to provide access to rear 

yards…These drives shall not be 

considered as structural violations in front 

or side yards. Further, any walk, terrace, or 

other pavement servicing a like function, 

and not in excess of 9 inches above the 

grade upon which placed, shall…not be 

considered to be a structure, and shall be 

permitted in any required yard.” 

 

Due to the substantial grade changes portions of the elevated walkway 

will be higher than 9 inches. The structure is still permitted within the 

required front and side yards, but must meet the setback requirements 

of the zoning district (i.e., same setbacks as main dwelling). 

 

As noted on page 1, the R-1 zoning district requires a 50 foot front, 

and rear, setback (meets requirement). The minimum side yard 

setback is 15 feet, with a total of 35 feet. The section of elevated 

walkway that does not meet the side yard setback requirement occurs 

in the narrow 15 foot wide front yard. Therefore, the applicant is 

requesting a Side Yard 1 dimensional variance of 10 feet, and a 

Side Yard 2 dimensional variance of 15 feet. 

 

 

To authorize a dimensional variance from the strict 

applications of the provisions of this Ordinance, the 

ZBA shall apply the following standards and make an 

affirmative finding as to each of the matters set forth in 

the standards. 

 

STANDARD 1 

There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or 

conditions applying to the property that do not apply 

generally to other properties in the same zoning 

classification.  

As noted by staff, the elevation change between the dwelling and waterfront is 

approximately 70 feet. 

VARIANCE STANDARDS 



4 | P a g e  

 

 

STANDARD 2 

The variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right similar to 

that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in the vicinity, provided that possible 

increased financial return shall not of itself, be deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 

 

The applicants desire to access the waterfront portion of their parcel. A similar 

variance (ZBA Case No. 10-01) for an elevated walkway was approved on 1/12/2010. 

 

STANDARD 3 

Authorization of such variance will not be of substantial detriment to adjacent property, and will not 

materially impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance or the public health, safety, and general 

welfare of the community. 

 

Staff notes the vast majority of property owners with Lake Michigan waterfront have 

some form of walkway that allows a person to traverse through the critical dunes in 

order to gain access to the waterfront. Elevated walkways with hand dug post 

foundations protect the dunes from erosion that would otherwise occur from foot 

traffic. 

 

STANDARD 4 

The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or the intended use of said property for 

which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practical 

the formulation of a general regulation for such condition or situation, a part of this Ordinance. 

 

As noted by staff, a review of 2003 – 2015 ZBA cases only yielded one variance for 

an elevated walkway. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Based on the findings above, staff recommends approval of the John Job and Mary Ellen Mika 

dimensional variance application if the ZBA determines each standard has been affirmatively met. If 

the Zoning Board of Appeals agrees with the aforementioned recommendation, the following motion 

can be offered: 

 

Motion to approve a Side Yard 1 setback dimensional variance of 10 feet, and a 

Side Yard 2 dimensional variance of 15 feet; from Section 21.02 of the Grand Haven 

Charter Township Zoning Ordinance in order to construct an elevated walkway to 

gain access to the waterfront located at 0 Wilderness Trail (Parcel No. 70-07-08-400-

032). Approval of this variance is based upon this Board’s findings that all four 

standards have been affirmatively met. 

 

Please contact me prior to the meeting with questions or concerns. 























© Latitude Geographics Group Ltd.

262.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Feet262.7

Notes

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

131.370

1: 1,576

Property Mapping Printout

Ten ft Contours

Two ft Contours

<all other values>

10ft

+2ft

+4ft

+6ft

+8ft

Parcels

Village Points

City of Holland Parcels (Allegan Portion)

Village Points

City of Holland Parcels (Allegan Portion)

Village Points

City of Holland Parcels (Allegan Portion)

Village Points

City of Holland Parcels (Allegan Portion)

Village Points

Village Points

Village Points




	1 - 07282015 - ZBA Agenda
	2 - 06232015 - ZBA Minutes
	3 - ZBA Memo - Job Dimensional Variance_07282015
	4 - ZBA - Job Variance Application
	5 - ZBA - Job Topographic Survey  Site Plan (2)
	6 - ZBA - Job GIS Aerial + Contours (2)
	7 - ZBA - Job Dwelling Elevations (2)

